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Early soil conservatlon on the Palos Verdes Peninsula
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Special to the News

“Lost! Tons of Fertile
California Soil by Erosion”
This is the title of a 1935
publication by the Soil
Conservation Service that
described the critical state of
California’s farmland. After
successive years of drought
in the early years of the
Great Depression and the
worst dust storms ever, the
country’s natural resources
were thrust into the national
consciousness.

Recognizing that “wast-
age of soil and moisture
resources” because of soil
erosion was “a menace to the
national welfare,” the federal
government established the
SCS in 1935 to prevent soil
erosion and preserve our soil
and water resources.

The SCS quickly estab-
lished demonstration proj-
ects on privately owned land
to teach farmers, landowners
and soil conservation asso-
ciations methods to control
erosion and to illustrate the
benefits of conservation.

The first demonstration
project in Los Angeles
County was on the Palos
Verdes Peninsula. The
project covered the farm and
ranch land on the western
side of the Peninsula and ar-
eas from Crest Road to Palos
Verdes Drive North.

According to a 1934 soil
€rosion reconnaissance sur-
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vey of California, just under
half of the 30 million acres of
farmable land in California
were either severely or mod-
erately eroded. Similarly,
about half of the land sur-
veyed on the Peninsula was
affected by soil erosion and
required treatment.

The Peninsula suffered
from “sheet erosion,” where
soil is moved downslope
in sheets rather than in
channels. Steep land and cul-
tivation methods caused this.
Another form of erosion
characteristic of the area was
“gully erosion” where water
runoft cut deep ravines into
the hillsides. Gully erosion
was aggravated by road con-
struction that concentrated
water runoff.

Civilian Conservation
Corps workers housed at
nearby Fort MacArthur
provided labor for the
project. The SCS placed
contour ditches at the tops of
cultivated lands and terraced
the lower areas to curtail
areas of sheet erosion. Small
dams and diversion ditches

were constructed to control
the gullies. Gullies were
stabilized with reinforced
concrete, rock masonry,
earth fills and loose rock.
Once erosion control mea-
sures were in place, native
and nonnative trees, shrubs
and grasses were planted to
further stabilize the land.

Pasture lands, terrace outlets
and ditches were seeded with

a variety of plants including
Australian saltbush, burr
clover, common oat, brown
mustard, California buck-
wheat, and Sudan grass.

A sample of the plants
used in the gullies include
kangaroo thorn, silk tree,
bottlebrush, gum, locust,
sycamore, elm, eucalyptus,
lemonade berry and blue
elderberry. The Southern
California wainut, a
California native and now
rare, was also used.

During the 1935-36 plant-
ing season alone - which
was reduced to only 60 days
because of a short rainy
season ~ 96,000 trees were
planted. With little rainfall

during the summer season, a
crew of 10 men provided ir-
rigation to the newly planted
areas.

To control damage to new
plantings and the engineering
structures by gophers, squir-

rels, rabbits and wood rats,
areas were baited and trappeo[.
before and during the plant-
ing and construction of the
soil control measures. More
than 10,000 acres of land wero.
treated; the SCS won its battle.
with the rodents.

The results of the SCS mea-
sures were seen immediately.
Terraces placed on cultivated
lands near Point Vicente
Lighthouse stopped mud-
slides that washed out Palos
Verdes Drive when it rained.

SCS activities also included
handling fires. According .
to the 1936 annual report,
the SCS supervised fire
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control on more than 10,000 acres of land
and handled five fires. The president of the
Palos Verdes Homes Association reportedly
discussed plans for a fire trail and plantings in
the area from the PV Golf Course extending
to the Douglas Cut.

In 1936, the SCS started to cut back on
demonstration projects. Though there was
still work to do on the Peninsula, the regional
director determined sufficient demonstra-
tion work had been done and recommended
closing the project. By the summer of 1937,
the SCS CCC camp at Fort MacArthur was
relocated to Cucamonga to take care of work
there, and the Palos Verdes project was put on

maintenance.

From October 1935 to April 1937, the SCS
created 45 miles of terraces and 209 small
masonry or concrete dams to stabilize gullies
for the Palos Verdes demonstration project.
More than 349 acres of the most highly erod-
ible lands were planted with trees and tens of
thousands of linear feet of diversion ditches
were created and hillsides graded.

The work of the SCS in the 1930s were the
beginnings of a program to “keep the rain
drop where it falls” and concerted efforts to
preserve and protect the valuable soil and
moisture resources of the Peninsula.
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